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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 3 _‘ ' )

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

Lorl A, Weaver 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034
Fax: 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Melissa A. Hardy wwiw.dhhs.nh.gov

_ Directar

Sepiember 6, 2024

‘His Excellency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into a contract with Qlarant Quality Sclutions, Inc. (VC#299675), Easton,
MD, in the amount of $145,103 for the provision of training opportunities for New Hampshire Case
Management and Service Coordination agencies, to ensure Home and Community-Based
Services are provided in a manner consistent with Person-Centered Planning, with the option to
renew for up to four (4} additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through
March 31, 2025. 100% Federal funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.
05-095-093-930010-26060000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS: HHS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES; HCBS ENHANCED FMAP-ARP

State Class / o
| Fiscal Year Account Qlass Title Job Number Total Amount
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $145,103
' Total $145,103

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to develop and provide Person-Centered Planning trainings
to New Hampshire case management and service coordination agencies, clinicians, provider
agencies, direct support professionals and individuals and families being served by the Home and
Community-Based Services system. The trainings are intended to improve person-centered
planning services to individuals and their families and also increasing the competencies of
personnel providing services. Through in-person, virtual and hybrid trainings, the contract will
facilitate growth of key competencies for provider agency personnel.

The population to be served includes New Hampshire service coordination and case
management entities, clinicians, provider agencies, direct support professionals and individuals
- and families being served by the Home and Community-Based Services system. The Contractor
will be responsible for developing and providing the following trainings:
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» Providing twenty-four (24) in-person and six {6) webinar live training sessions for
case management and service coordination agencies, through an online training
modality; _

o Providing twenty-fourM {24} webinar live training sessions for providers and
clinicians, through an online training modality;

e Providing twenty-four (24) in-pérson and six (6) webinar live training sessions,
inclusive of self-paced online trainings, for individuals receiving services and
families; and

o Recorded versions of training modules for individuals unable to atlend a live session
through an online training modality. .

The Department will monitor services by:

= Reviewing monthly reports from the Contfractor, to ensure tasks and activities are
delivered in accordance with the Department-approved Work Plan; _

o Reviewing quarterly reports generated by the Contractor, {o e’ns‘ufe registration and .
. attendance data, curriculum/topics developed, and evaluation results are
satisfactory; ‘ o

» Reviewing pre- and post-training surveys to gauge consumer satisfaction.

) The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals that was posted on the Department’s website from April 9, 2024, through
May 10, 2024. The Department received four (4) responses that were reviewed and scored by a
team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached. : :

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this requeét, the target populations will not
be able to access a statewide comprehensive person-centered planning training, and federal
funding allocated to this initiative will not be utilized.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.778

In the event that the Fedér_al Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
~ be requested to support this program. . .

Respectfully submitted,

LY
banee WD -
Tioxi A, Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Heaith and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens 10 achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

ProjectID # RFP-2024-DLTSS-06-HCBSP

Project Title Person-Centered Planning Training,

y

®

) - |unk center
Maximum |DIVERSITY - SUPPORT “|ON AGING AND
Points QOUTREACH |DEVELOPMENT | COMMUNITY
Available |SERVICES QLARANT ASSOCIATES  |LIVING
Technical e lm “, . RN S
QT - Ability/Work Plan S 250, 150 240 200 225
Q2 - Experience Providing Training 150 75 143 130 140
Q3 - Evaluating Impact - Pre/Post Training 5
Assessments 100 25 80 83 90
Q4 - Capacity/Staffing Plan . 150 B5 140 125 140
Q5 - Access 1o Trainings/Stakeholder
Engagement ~ 100° 27 85 80 82
0 1] 0 0
0 0 0 Q
Subtotal - Technical 750 342 . 698 620 677
If a Vendor fails to achieve the minimum Technical score stated within the RFP, it will receive no further consideration from
the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.
Cost P - 24,
Vendor Cost 200 XXX 200 36 69
Vender Budget Evatuation 50 KXX 35 20 28
Subtotal - Cost 250 KXX 235 56 97
TOTAL POINTS 1000 342 933 676 774
[__ TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST [ XXX 3145703 | 5803,830- | 3416635 |
Reviewer Name Title
! Thom O'Connor Administrator IIl

2 _Kara Washam

3 Jennifer Barrington

4 Abby Conger

5

Grants Adminjstrator

Business Adrinistrator Il

ADRC Administrator
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Subject: RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 HCBS Person-Centered Planning Training

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

-

1.4 Contractor Address

28464 Marlboro Avenue
Easton, MD 21601

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Unit-and Class
Number TBD

410-770-8332

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
$145,103

March 31, 2025

1.2 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
{603) 271-9631

I.11 Contractor Signature

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

DocuSigned by:

% ng Date:.

Signed by: 9/5/2024 Ronald G. For'sythe
fovald £. Fomqﬂu, Date: CEO
1.13  State Agency Signature 9/6/2024 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Melissa Hardy

Director, DLTSS

By:

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

DocuSigned by;

By: ?Imjﬂ, Qumiv\,o

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

On: 9/6/2024

G&C Item number;

1.17 Approval 'Bydtﬁe Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4

Initlal
@
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is mcorporated herein by reference.
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA R80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be llmlted to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
,Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific

contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and”’ performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the

Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13,

(“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7, .
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in ‘EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference,

5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-0l. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and puidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations, The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be

‘made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial

bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws,

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State’s point of contact pertaining to this

payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the Agreement.
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance o
Page 2 of 4 K&er
Contractor Initials

Date9/572024
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending ali payments to be made under this
Agpreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or "

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defal.‘llt, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION. »

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty {30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State’s
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

Page 3 of 4

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason,

10.3 Disclosure’ of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.I. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State.or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State, '

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and conzent of the State.

12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts arnd
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION., The Ceontractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
Jjudgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willfizl misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

. ) Initial
- | ﬁé{:’
Contractor Initials
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14, INSURANCE.

141 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering a[l Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire,

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Ofﬁcer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agréement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS®’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcentractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers’ Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers® Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of

mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post”

Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.
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-deemed an original,

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to Staté law, rule or policy.

19, CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.

19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, bé brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS, In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
nd-way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreesment.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
Initial
@ |
Contractor Imtlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home and Community-Based Services Person-Centered Planning Training

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3., as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2.  Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5., as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to erisure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Confractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed:;-
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

:lnmal
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. . 9/5/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home and Community-Based Services Person Centered Planning Training

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must develop, coordinate and administer Home and
Community Based Services (HCBS) Person-Centered Planning (PCP)
training sessions designed to improve services to individuals and the
competencies of personnel providing services.

1.2.  The Contractor must make all trainings available to: case management (CM)
and service coordination (SC) agencies; clinicians; provider agencies; direct
support professionals (DSPs); and individuals and families being served
through the HCBS system.

1.3.  The Contractor must ensure training sessions are available statewide.

1.4. The Contractor must demonstrate a training design, in collaboration with the
Department, which includes knowledge and expertise related to PCP
services, and connections with other State and local programs, including, but
not limited to:

1.4.1. Employing the following four (4) phases of activity to meet the
requirements of this Agreement:
1.4.1.1. Discovery; :
1.4.1.2. Development;
1.4.1.3. Training; and
1.4.1.4. Post-training.

1.4.2. Providing twenty-four (24) in-person and six (6) webinar live training
sessions for CM/SC agencies, through an online training modality;

1.4.3. Providing twenty-four (24) webinar live training sessions for providers
and clinicians, through an online training modality;

1.4.4. Providing twenty-four (24) in-person and six (6) webinar live training
sessions, inclusive of self-paced online trainings, for individuals
receiving services and/or their families; and

1.4.5. Providing recorded versions of training modules for individuals unable
to attend a live session through an online training modality.

1.53. The Contractor must provide a series of remote webinars to community
partners, in order to integrate strong experiential learning and hands-on
practical applications throughout the training based on process standards,

- including, but not limited to:

1.5.1. CMs/SCs;

1.5.2. Service Providers;

1.5.3. Clinicians;

1.5.4. Individuals recelvmg services/Families; and

1.5.5. Department leadership. it

(e
RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 Contractor Initials

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. Page 1 of 16
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home and Community-Based Services Person Centered Planning Training

EXHIBIT B

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

The Contractor must facilitate growth of key compétencies for provider
agency personnel.

The Contractor must develop the following PCP initiatives, including, but not
limited to:

1.7.1. National and state standards related to person-centered practices;

1.7.2. Trainings which emphasize voice and choice for individuals aging in
the community, including individuals accessing Choices for
Independence (CFl) waiver services, individuals with physical -
disabilities, IDD and/or ABD:;

1.7.3. Supported Decision-Making;

1.7.4. HCBS: Settings Rule and Person-Centered Supports;

1.7.5. Putting Person-Centered Practices into Action: Developing Social
Roles;

1.7.6. Developing and Using a Pre-Individual Service Plan Process:

1.7.7. Person-Centered Documentation;

1.7.8. Informed Choice;

1.7.9. How to Support Self-Determination;

1.7.10. Empowering and Supporting Self-Advocacy; and

-1.7.11. Other training topics as determined by the Department.

The Contractor must collaborate with Department personnel to prioritize
curricula design that integrates strong experiential learning and hands-on
practical applications, in order to provide optimal levels of knowledge and
skills development for training participants.

The Contractor must provide instructors/facilitators with learning, content area
expertise and lived experience, who are qualified to effectively deliver both
classroom learning and group/individual coaching on training content, in
collaboration with, and as approved by the Department.

The Contractor must provide PowerPoints and other training materials
developed to the Department for approval before use in training sessions.

The Contractor must develop and offer ongoing refresher courses for
participants to maintain and/or strengthen skills.

The Contractor must ensure that trainings are provided statewide and must
develop a plan to provide in-person, virtual, and/or hybrid training options,
including recordings of each training for Department use.

The Contractor must utilize Methods to Ensure Competence, outlined in Table
3, below:

I " Mettiods to Ensure Competency

Training Type Details
Initial
| Ke¥
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In-Person
Training

s o g s

“Focus-Driven: Clearly. defmed learn ng o Jectwes allow learners to N
understand the specific knowledge and skills they are expected to master
with clearly defined competencies.

Flexible Pacing: Participants progress at their pace, spending more time on

.challenging concepts and moving quickiy through concepts they grasp more
easily. This enables them to take owniership of their learning process and
make progress according to their needs and abilities.

Personalized, Real-World {examples, scenarios) Learning Experiences and’

- Testimony from People with Lived Experiénce: This method of learning -
" .supports personallzed learnlng pathways, with instruction and support -

tailored to meet the uhique rieeds of each learher, and encourages
interactive learning experiences.
Assessment and Competency: Frequent knowledge checks, both formative

~-and summative, measure the learner’s:progress toward mastering each

competency. )

Connected Learning Communities: Participants have visibility into what’s

happening around them, and-are easily able to access resources and learning
~materials. They will have the opportunity to interact with peers and trainers.

to foster a learning community. .~~~ - . .

' Live Webinar
Training

Focus-Driven: Clearly defined Iearnlng ObjECtIVE‘S allow Iearners to
understand the specific knowledge and skills they are expected to master
with clearly defined competencies.

Personalized, Real-World (examples, scenarios) Learning Experiences and
Testimony from People with Lived Experience: This method of learning
supports personalized learning pathways, with instruction and support
tailored to meet the unique needs of each Iearner and encourages
interactive learning experiences.

Assessment and Competency: Frequent knowledge checks, both formative
and summative, measuré the learner’s progress toward mastering each
competency.

Connected Learning Communities: Participants have visibility into what is

- happening around them, and are easily able to access resources and learning

materials. They will have the opportunity to interact with peers and trainers
to foster a learning community.

Training

Self-Paced -

H

'
3

_Focus-Driven: Clearly defined learning ObJECtIVe; allow learners to
understand the specific knowledge and skills they are expected to master
with c]ear[y defined competencies.

i Personahzed Real-World (examples, scenarlos) Learning Experlences and

Testimony from People with Lived Experietice: This method of Iearnmg
supports persanalized learning pathways, with instruction and support
tailored to meet'the unique needs of each learner, and encourages
interactive learning experiences.

.

1.14. The Contractor must develop a plan that ensures basic learning principles are

in place depending on the learning styles and needs of audience partim@i‘ﬂs.
ke¥
RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 ) Contractor Initials

Qlarant Quality Sclutions, Ine.

Page 3 of 16 Date

9/5/2024



Decusign Envelope ID: C5BB29F9-79AC-4FA8-9C9E-05C5FB48F 1B4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home and Community-Based Services Person Centered Planning Training

EXHIBITB.

1.15.

1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

- 1.21.

1.22.

1.23.

1.24.

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 Contractor Initials

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. Page 4 of 16

"The Contractor must present cases for discussion, if applicable, and ensure

all of the information in each case is de-identified and does not contain PH]I

“and/or Pll and does not disclose any information that would allow for

constructive identification.

The Contractor must record and disseminate recommendations from case-
based discussions that do not include any PHI or PIl and do not contain any
information allowing for constructive identification.

The Contractor must ensure all written, video, and audio materials produced
or purchased under the contract have prior approval from the Department
before printing, production, distribution, or use.

The Contractor must attend a kickoff meeting with the Department, within
thirty (30) days of contract approval by the Governor and Executive Council,
to review the following critical elements, including, but not limited to:

1.18.1. Work Plan and timelines; .

1.18.2. Learning Management System (LMS)
1.18.3. Training workflow;

1.18.4. Communication plan; and

1.18.5. Regular meeting and report schedules

The Contractor must provide training announcements registration, learning
materials, and administrative and technology support for training sessions.

The Contractor must provide online event registration, and must:

1.20.1. Send e-mail notifications to all participants at least three weeks prior
to training events, including the registration link to track attendance;

1.20.2. Ensure individuals receive a training link fo access codes to log into
the training;

1.20.3. Ensure virtual attendees receive a completion certificate.

The Contractor must, when using online training modalities, use technology
that is easily accessible by individuals with limited technology skills, and
provide technical support when individuals need assistance with using the
technology.

The Contractor must develop and disseminate pre- and post-training
Satisfaction and Engagement surveys, in order to collect feedback from
participants to evaluate the overall eﬁectlveness and value gained from the
educational sessions.

The Contractor must develop and implement promotional materials that
ensure the covered populations have the information necessary to enroll as
participants in the offered trainings.

The Contractor must ensure accommodations are made for individuals with
speech, language, and visual needs, in accordance with Section 508@&
(A

9/5/2024
ate
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1.25.

1.26.

1.27.

1.28.

1.29.

1.30.

1.31.

1.32.

1.33.

1.34.

compliance requirements.

The Contractor must review results of the case management assessment and
training project conducted by Human Services Research Institute (HSRI), -
which identifies specific training needs for CMs and SCs. _

The Contractor must utilize resources from the National Center on Advancing
Person-Centered Practices and Systems (NCAPPS) -to help inform and
provide supplemental resources for the development of training.

The Contractor must collaborate with stakeholders identified by the
Department to inform the scope of training, including but not limited to:

1.27.1. Case Management entities;

1.27.2. Area Agency System;

1.27.3. Aging and Disability Resource Centers;
1.27.4. Statewide Risk Management Committee: and
1.27.5. Other entities as approved by the Department.

The Contractor must provide a transition and sustainability training plan in
collaboration with the Department, to ensure continued access to training
content. -

The Contractor must work with the Department on logistics for developing
trainings, including dissemination of training materials.

The “Contractor must provide and maintain all required materials and’
equipment used for all trainings and events.

1.30.1. Materials must be prepared and delivered in advance, and any
equipment set up and tested, to ensure trainings begin on time.

The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a
quarterly basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to finalize the Work
Plan in 1.34., within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, which must
include, but is not limited to:

1.32.1. All proposed activities:

1.32.2. Individuals responsible for each part of the plan;
1.32.3. A schedule of activities: and

1.32.4. Measurable performarice goals or indicators.

The Contractor must begin implementation immediately ubon receipt of
Department approval of the Work Plan.

Work Plan

Smmsnity i
Operations: B o L p—initial
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Initial Kick- Off:ﬂ tlngwtrh New Hampshire Within the et fve — Departmeit pe'_rsq;;?éhw
s Ty fa; ‘. N - o
g RDZF;JZTtTniTt}O Health and. HM Hhinthe s |'ve ays of contra Qlarant’s: Vice President and

Effactive Date o
_‘»\-_‘* _ |Project Director

Refing thé”broject plan based on feedback from e

-|Qlarant's Vice President

| Kick Off Meeting and send first draft to | Within five business days of the contract o
d o . ..|the Department ' Effective Date and F"n.'uject DJre_etor )
Pro;ect Plan Approval ; Efg;ﬁng:g}f g’&{ggﬁ‘{v the project plan and Five business days aftar the pro;ect plan is Depanmen_tjpers'ennef
. o ) submitted
o “Five business days aiter feedback on the . o
Update prOJect planand subamit firial plan to rojact plan i Qlarant's Project Director

' {the Department recglved from the Department .

|Refine the.communication plan based on feedback-

|from Kick OFf Meeting and send first, Within ﬂvee_busi:i'e_s_s days'of the contract iQlaranit's Project Director
draftto. the Department Effectivé Date

“Commiinfcation Plan; 1 Department wﬂlr_ew_ew ‘the comimunication plan

1Five busin,esls,da\fs_ after the project plan is Department persopnel

5" and submit back to Qlarant
e submitted
N i Five business-days after feedback onthe | . ] .
B &ggatft%%mﬂgg:rf;%ﬁ? plan and submit final raject planis Qlarant's Project Diréctor

received from the Dépaitment .

ik Solicit potential members of the wogk-group Within five'bitsiness.days of the contract Qlafar)t’s Project Director
Efféctive Dat

HCBS Commum = : fféctive Date

Partne ‘qurk oup -5\ Schedule the first:meetirig with the warkgroup

' Development

Within 30 days of the contract Effective | Qfarant's Project Director-
Date .

; Qlarant will develop the format for thé manthly

|and quarterty reports and subniit to. for review and | “Within 15 days of the contract Effectiva
approval, ) Date

Qlarant’s Vice Presidant
J|and. Profect Pirector

: Department will review the report formats and -

. e busi theten ; o
1submiit back to Qlarant Five business, days after the regort Department pefsonnel

Fformats are submitted

|submit the first manthly repisre Within 10 days after the firstmonth.  !Qlarant's Project Director

Withini 10 days after thefifst quarter

- isubmit the first quarterly.report Qlarant's Project Director

lop draft traiping uleputline anc raing tople s glarant's Prcuect Dwector and

sUbmit to-the workgroup thaeplgeggﬁtdn?gnt Clsmes i
Develap Outline for iWorkgroup reviews the outline. and S L - '
Content of aTraihing . |submits feedback . . . - Upto two weeks - : kag!

{Qlaratt's Project Dnrector and

‘,__'FMOH'-"E;‘ ’ Update the outlin ehasad on feedback_ E ) Ug'to 'ﬁ\:teﬁ business-d . ShEs
. Develop the trainiing module, mcludlng scnpt - -
kiiwladge. checks, liziés, - pre- and post tests, ) . Up,tq.tbgée'@ée;{g- R dl'ar'ant's Pi_djéct-'ljire'dtér"
" ) Jete.and submit it to'the warkgroup - S and EMEs
w0 [Werkereup Feviews the-training; module N i g wahe 'Workgroup and Department
’ _|8nd submits Eeedba:fk s : Upia two weeks o . personneI '_ ___
Update the trammg module based on feedback and : ) ] | S
| subiit the yipdated traifitg: misdule to Department Ugﬁto twd‘weeks ] Qia_i'__‘a_nﬁt‘s;Projec't_Difectqr
_ : |for final réview andapproval, - e v . Jand SMES™..
DevelopTraining Module  Department conduicts final review ofthe s T —
' Coritent: training‘module - . Upto:t_wo weeks__ - Departreepfg:_pe_rtsqnnel

|Receive dny updates from tiéparirnent,' make )
necessary modifications’ and submit to Departmient | Up to'five businiess days:

{for final agproval :

: Department conducts fenal rewew and

Qlaraiit's Project Director
) ar]d_ SMEs

Up to flve busmess days Departmem personnel

RFP-2024-DLTSS8-08-HCBSP-01 ) Contractor Initials
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& Qlafant Project:Dir _torand
Depart ; 4

artf.-r thet cfrst wgek or certmcguon of the
;st -In epen ent Facilitated Traming

,Deve!ggme‘ht of
. satisfaction survéy to.:

i) necessary modiﬂcatmn ] and i S ! K ¢
i’ Departmentfor finalapproval - . i :' ] f":u feedback‘on the satlsfactlon surveys

Department conducts final teview a
approval of the satlsfactlon surveys

Wlthm five buslness days of réceipt of the D
. finaldraft-of the satigfaction stirveys |

2. Reportmg

2.1.  The Contractor must submit monthly reports, within ten (10) days of the end
“of each month, to ensure tasks and activities are delivered in accordance with
the Work Plan, including:

2.1.1. Progress on development of training sessions, including, but not
limited to:
- 2.1.1.1. Updates on the Work Plan tasks and key milestones

completed for the month;

21.1.2. A summary of the key work performed during the monthly
period;

2.1.1.3. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and problems,
partnered with mitigation strategies; and

2.1.1.4. Scheduled work for the upcoming period, including progress

) on the Work Plan.

2.1.1.5. Results of Pre- and post-training surveys, including, but not
limited to:.
2.1.1.5.1. Total number of answers scored:;
2.1.1.5.2. Total number of correct answers;

) ‘ _ 2.1.1.5.3. Percent of accurate scores;

2.1.1.5.4. Average number of attempts to pass the post-

test; and
, 2.1.1.5.5. Questions most often answered incorrectly by
! participants. : tnital
‘ ¥
RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 . . Contractor [nitials
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50

2.2. The Contractor must submit quarterly Reports -to the Department which
include, but are not limited to:

2.21.
2.2.2.

2.2.3.
2.24.
2.25.

Regtstratlon and attendance data for each training session:
Curriculum/topics developed, ‘Updated or worked on, and evaluation,
results for each quarter, which are specifically linked to performance
outcomes;

The fields and roles in which the attendees work;

Satisfaction evaluation results for each quarter; and
Recommendations to improve the overall training process and
madules, if any.

2.3. The-Contractor may be required to provide addltlonal key data ina format and
at a frequency specified by the Department.

24, Background Checks

24.1.

Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under thls ‘
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has
undergone;’

2.41.1. A criminal background check at the Contractor's expense,

and has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under this
Agreement;

h2‘_.4.1.2 A name search of the Department’s Bureau of Elderly and

Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-
F:49, with results indicating no evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement;
and

2.4.1.3. A name search -of the Departments Division for Children,

Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to
‘RSA 169-C:35, with results indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under thls
Agreement.

2.5. Cont"dentlal Data

25.1.

2.5.2,

The Contractor must meet all information securlty and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in ‘accordance with the-
Department’'s Information Security Reqmrements Exhibit as
referenced below. :

The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in. delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation
agreeing to atcess, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in
accordance with federal and state laws and regulations and the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The
Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable busmess
need to access confidential data. The Contractor must[p vide

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 , o Contracter Initials ~———
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attestations upon Department request. S~

2.6. Privacy Impact Assessment

———
e,

26, U%ques&ihe&rl@tor must allow and assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy -Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/websﬂe(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s )lwebSIte(s) hosted by - the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (PIl) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the

- Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable
systems and documentation sufficient to allow the Department to
assess, at minimum, the following:

2.6.1.1, How Pli is gathered and stored; |

2.6.1.2. Who will have access to PII;

2.6.1.3. How Pl will be used in the system;

26.1.4. How individual consent will be achleved and revoked;
and

2.6.1.5. Privacy practices.

2.6.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PlAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting
the collection, processing or storage of PII.

2.7. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

2.7.1.  Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this
Agreement, are authorized by the Department's information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the
fulfilment of this. Agreement must:

2.71.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH
DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedires
} g and guidelines, and complete appltcable trainings as
4 . required;

27.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access
solely for conducting official Department business and
agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including,- but not limited, to personal or other private
and non-Department use, and that at no timie shall they
access or attempt to access information without having
the express authority of the Department to do so‘ Ker

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 X Gontractor Initals

9/5/2024
Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. ’ Page 9 of 16 ate



Dacusign Envelope ID; C5BB29F9-79AC-4FAR-OCIE-05C5FRB48F 184

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home and Community-Based Services Person Centered Planning Training

EXHIBIT B

2.7.1.3.

2.7.1.4.

2.71.5.
2.7.1.6.

2.71.7.

2.7.1.8.

2.7.1.9.

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01

Qlarant Quality Solultions. Inc.

Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures,
and/or agreement relating to system entry/access:

Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse.
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and at all times
must use utmost care to protect and keep such software
strictly confidential in accordance with the license or any
other agreement executed by the Department;

Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s)
authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office or-designee;

Not install non-standard software on any Department
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office or designee;

Agree that email and other- electronic communication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-
issued email system are the property of the Department
of New Hampshire and to be used for business
purposes only. Email is defined as “internal email
systems” or “Department-funded email systems.”

Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH
DolT policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

Agree when utilizing the Department’'s email system:

2.7.1.89.1. To only use a Department email address
assigned to them with a ‘@
affiliate. DHHS.NH.Gov".

2.7.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information
“ identifying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member; and

2.7.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: “This message may
contain ~information that is privileged and
confidential and is intended only for the use of the
individual(s) to whom it is addressed. If you
receive this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately and delete this electronic
message and any attachments from your system.
‘ Ke¥

Thank you for your cooperation.”

Contractor Initials

9/5/2024
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- 2.7.1.10.

2.7.1.11.

2.7.1.12.

2.7.1.10.3.

Contractor End Users with a Départment issued email,
access or potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a
workspace in a Department building/facility, must:

2.7.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual
Information Security & Compliance
Awareness Training prior to accessing,
viewing, handling, hearing, or
transmitting Department Data or
Confidential Data. -

Sign the Depariment’s Business Use
and Confidentiality Agreement and
Asset Use Agreement, .and the NH
DolT Department wide Computer Use
Agreement upon execution of the
Agreement and annually thereafter.

2.7.1.10.2,

Only access the Department’s intranet
to view the Department’s Policies and
Procedures and Information Security
webpages.

Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in
violation of any of the above terms and conditions, said
End User may face removal from the Agreement, and/or
criminal and/or-civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a.
violation of law.

Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum
of three business days prior to any upcommg transfers
or terminations of End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who- hHave system
priwleges If End Users who possess Department

- credentials and/or badges or who have system

privileges resign or are dismissed without advance

notice, the Contractor agrees to notify the Department’s

Information Security Office or designee immediately.

2.7.2. Workspace Requirement .

2.7.2.1.

If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to
determine requirements for providing necessary
workspace and State:equipment for |ts End Users.

28 Contract End- of-Life Transition Services

2.8.1. General Requirements

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

- :Enitiai
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2.8.1.1.

2.81.2,

2.8.1.3.

2.8.14.

2.8.1.5.

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. )

If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith
to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services
from the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable,
the Contractor engaged by the Department to assume
the Services previously performed by the Contractor for

_this section the new Contractor shall be known as

“Recipient”). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the
contract or wunless otherwise specified by the
Department, the Contractor must begin working with the
Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to
develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The Department
shall provide the DTP, temiplate to the Contractor.

The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in connection with the ftransition from the

~ performance of Services by the Contractor and.its End

Users to the performance of such Services. This may

include assistance with the secure transfer of records

(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such
Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related
information technology infrastructure (“Internal IT
Systems”) of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.

if a system, database, hardware, software, and/or
software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, andfor store Department Data in

. relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried

and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

The internal planning of the Transition Services by the
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in a timely
manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

Should the data Transition ‘extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information

Security Requirements, and if applicable;—rithe

Contractor Initials
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2.8.1.6.

Department’s Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is
accepted as complete by the Department.

In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of
said data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor
will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional
standards for retention requirements prior to destruction,
refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

2.8.2. Completion of Transition Services

2.8.2.1.

2.8.2.2.

Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the
Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product.

Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the -
terms and conditions of the Department’s Information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

2.8.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

2.8.3.1.

"In the event the Department is not satisfied with the

results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the
lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product or at any time during the data Transition
process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an
agreement is not reached, at any time the Department
shall be entitled to initiate actions in accordance with the
Agreement.

2.9. Website and Social Media

2.9.1. The Contractor must work with the Department’'s Communications
Bureau to ensure that any social media or website designed,
created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
Department and NH DolT website and social media requirements

and policies.

RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

:lnilia]
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| 3. Exhibits Incorporated
' 3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

2.9.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health [nformation (PHI),
Personally [dentifiable Information (PIl), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed

t unless expressly provided in' the Contract. The solicitation or
disclosure of PHI, PIl, or other Confidential Information is subject
to the terms of the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associate Agreement signed
by the parties, and all applicable Department and federal law,
rules, and agreements. Unless specifically required by the
Agreement and unless clear notice is provided.to users of the
website  or social media, the .Contractor agrees that site visitation

. must not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media
analytics or marketing.

2.9.3. State of New Hampshire’s Website Copyright

2.9.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State’ WWW site,

including copyright to all Data and information, shall

remain with the State of New Hampshlre The State of

New Hampshire shall also retain &ll right, title and interest

in any user interffaces and computer instructions

- embedded within the WWW pages. All WWW pages and

any other Data or information shall, where applicable,
display the State of New Hampshire's. copyright.

The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreemeﬁt in

accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements,

‘The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
_accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement,
" which has been executed by the parties. :

4. Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resultingifrom Court Orders or Legislative Changes
4.11. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
o described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priesities
: ‘ ‘ A
RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 _ _Contractor Initials
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and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally ar;d Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services o

4.2.1. The Confractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement .
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and 'language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals
who have speech challenges. : ,

- 4.3. ’ Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. "All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must -include the following statement,
“The preparation ‘of this (report, document .etc.) was financed under -
an Contract with. the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of
New Hampshire andfor such other funding sources as were
available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.” ‘ :

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased U‘nder’the Agreement must
have prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use. ‘

4.3.3. The Department musi retain copyright ownership for any and- all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

4.33.1. Brochures.
4.3.3.2. Resource directories.
' 4.3.3.3."  Protocols or guidefines.
4.3.3.4. Posters.
4.3.3.5. 'Reportsi_

4.3.4. The Contractor must not'reproduce any materials produced under
- the Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities:'Compliance_yvith Laws and Regulations

4.41. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the
' Contractor must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of
federal, state, county and’ municipal authorities and with any
direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to -Iawf K\g’ﬂch

‘RFP-2024-DLTSS-08-HCBSP-01 ‘ . Contracter Initials
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must impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said
services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will
at all times comply with the terms and conditions of each such
license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this
Agreement the facilities must comply with all rules, orders,
regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal
and the local fire protection agency, and must be in conformance
with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

5. Records

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations
of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

5.1.3. Records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted
to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
and any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports
and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

If the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder, the Department retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from
the Contractor.

:!nitia1
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:
1.1. 100% Federal funds.

1.1.1. Section 9817 of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of .
2021, as awarded in Spring 2022, by the Center for Medicaid
.Serwces (CMS), ALN# 93.778.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.331.
2.2.  The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332. '

3. Pa'yment shall be for services provided in the fulfillment of this Agreement, as
specified in. Exhibit B, Scope of Work, and in accordance with the Deliverable
Schedule in Section 3.1., below:

3.1. Déliverable Schedule

ORI

iscovery Pha:se: Start | Within thirty (30) | $13,694 | Progress Report and

up, Workgroup Start up, | days of Governor Outcomes (includes project

Research - and Council plan updates, evaluations,
. | approval reports)

Development Phase: | Within ninety (90) | $21,5636 [ Progress "Report and

Training Module | days of Governor Outcomes (includes project

Development for each | and Council plan updates, evaluations,

type, Workgroup approval reports)

Training Phase: Case | March 31,2025 | $43,704 | Attendance sheets and

Management Training / reports.

Unit Rate (24 Live In
Person Sessions, 24 Live |-

Surveys)
Training Phase: Direct | March 31, 2025 $18,840 | Attendance sheets and
Service Providers reports.

-Training / Unit Rate (24
Live Webinar Sessions)

Training Phase: | March 31,2025 | $36,349 | Attendance sheets and
Individuals & Guardians reports.

Training / Unit Rate (1
elearning Module, up to
1,000 participants)

Initial
RFP-2024-DLTSS-06-HCBSP-01 : Contractor Initials (_\—
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EXHIBIT C
Post * Training Phase: | September 2024, | $10,980 | Report on OQutcomes
Reports & Meetings / | December 2024, (includes  project plan
Quarterly Unit Rate: | March 2025 updates, post-evaluations)
$3,660 ‘

Total $145,103

3.2. Due Dates in the Deliverable Schedule in 3.1. may be subject to change
with Department approval. '

4. The Contractor shall submit invoices within thirty (30) days of the Deliverable
due dates listes in the Deliverable Schedule in 3.1. above for payment of
Department-accepted and -approved Deliverables in accordance with the
Deliverable Schedule. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

4.1. Includesidentification of the completed Deliverable(s), Deliverable(s) due
date(s), Deliverable(s) completion date(s), and Deliverable(s)
acceptance date(s);

4.2. Include an electronic signature, and Deliverable documentation, and is
emailed to bdsinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to: -

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

~ Concord, NH 03301

2. Upon acceptance of a Deliverable by the Department, and a properly
documented invoice, the Department.shall make payment to the Contractor
within thirty (30) days of receipt of each approved invoice.

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

- justified.

7. Audits

7.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if-
any of the following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended ‘$750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

© 7.1.2.  Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, IlI-b.

:Inltial
RFP-2024-DLTSS-06-HCBSP-01 R Contractor Initials
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7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required

by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative  Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

7.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings

and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan. '

If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

:lnltial
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SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et sed.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 301 7.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu-of certificates for each Agreement during the fedetal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension: or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Strest
Concord, NH 03301-6505
1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful nianufacture, distribution, '
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition; .

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees ahout
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2.  The Contractor's policy of 'maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the perfarmance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4, Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph {a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

' 1.4.1.  Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminalnﬂil;lug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sucﬁ?om;,r}ction;

r
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1.5. Notifying the agency inwriting, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose confract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
{dentification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following: actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. 'Taking appropriate personnel action against such an embloyee, up to and including .
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to patticipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7.Making a gocd faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

r_ﬁéf
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.Ss.C. 1352) and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS ‘
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title [V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have heen paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

2. Ifany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https:/fomb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipient$ shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is.a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submissicn of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

Initial

2
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SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT., SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS ‘ ‘

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees o comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsbility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification: .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances, ‘ . ’

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and .
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See

https:/iwww.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1 -part76/context.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS. -

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, [neligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
https://www.ecfr.gov/currentttitle-22/chapter-Vipart-513. ! r— nitat
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9.

10.

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is*
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals;

11.1.  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or”
voluntanly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

112, Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to abtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transéaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3.  Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
()(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13.

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospectwe lower tier
participant, as defined in 456 CFR Part 78, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:

13.1.  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2.  Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrées by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without rmodification in all lower tier covered
transactions .and in all sclicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

r——'lniﬁal
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative.as identified in Sections 1.11-and 1.12 of the General Prowsmns to execute
the following certification:

‘The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal

requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1.

10.

11.

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200).

The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3783d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, colar, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain rec1p|ents to produce-an Equal Employment Cpportunity
Plan;

The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference; the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practlces or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;_

The Civil Rights Act of 19684 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recup|ents of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin:in any program or
activity);

The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

The Education Amendments of 1972 (20'U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-88), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibite discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

28 C.F.R. pt, 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Departmeént of Justice Regulations — Nendiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense ,
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

The Clean Air Act {42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

Initial
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.8.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters.

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulahons Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701--3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Inthe event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a f[ndmg of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

I/—Intﬂal
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

~ Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Section 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994, :

iy
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ECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Féderal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded en or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award. ‘

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

—

Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency )

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source

6. Award tiile descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Princi;;Ie place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

" 10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Ccmpensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
_ days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractoridentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Infermation), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to-the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

r—lniﬂal
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FORM A

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 .of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses fo the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

Z9EFQTHVYNT?Z

2. inyourbusiness or organization's breceding completed fiscal year, did your business or

organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.8. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and {2} $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Excharige Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Révenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and cbmpensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name; ) Amount:
Name: Amount; ; .
Name: ' Amount:

~ Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Contractor Name: Qlarant quaTlity Solutions

Signed by:

9/5/2024 [‘Komti &. Forsyfle

Date: Name. Ronald G. Forsythe
Tltle: CEO r—lnitial
o
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T

A. Definitions ‘ -

e

—

The following terms may bé reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1.

‘Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, “ Breach”
shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

“Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident™ in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-81, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 6f
Commerce. ‘ ; ‘

“Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance

. Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

“End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

“HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the. processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

} Enitial
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10.

1.

12.

or miéplacement' of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electroﬁic

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized, access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

“Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and. not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

“Personal Information” {or “PI”) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,

alone, orwhen combined with other personal or identifying information which is I[nked
or linkable to a specific. individual, such as date and place of birth, mothers maiden

_ hame, etc.

Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Umted
‘States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. :

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic.
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C and amendments
thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health information” means Protected Health;[nformation that is

- not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information

unusable, unreadable, or mdempherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

RESRONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Businéss Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1.

The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,

including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not

use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation

of the Privacy and Security Ruie.
— Initial
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request

for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PH|
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. ‘

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

8. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of

DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

Il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA’

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application’s encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data

said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.
InHial
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10.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit- Conﬂdentlal Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmifted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour

-auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).
<11,

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices; all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure -of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

J
The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or-permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must: .
‘A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the-services rendered under this Contract outside of the :Unitéd
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. - _

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure 'proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agreeé to provide security awareness and education for its End -
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrées to retain all electronic and hard copies of Corifidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section V. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
fegulations regarding the ‘privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems the Iatest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection..
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6.

The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any-security vulnerabllity of the hosting.
infrastructure. .

B. Disposition

1.

'If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information-on its systems (or its sub-
- contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely

disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in Use, €lectronic. media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a sectire wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted 'standards for sécure deletion. and’ media
sanitization, -or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88,: Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will docunmient and certify in writing at time of the data
destfuction, and will provide ‘written cert|f|cat|on to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable; regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will: be jointly evaluated by the -
State-and Contractor prior to destruction.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the term'ination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

Unless otherwise spécified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A Contractor -agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derlvat[ve data.or files, as follows: .

1.

The Contractbr will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services..

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to -
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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The Contractor will ‘maintsin—apprdpriate- authentication and access\?On'trols to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

’ T—————
The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in pldce to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security-awareness-and education for its End Users’
in-support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be -sub-contracting any core functions. of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will ‘maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

L]

If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

~ occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed

10.

11.

annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
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12

13.

14.

18.

16.

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regardlng the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and

‘procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
pracess. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State’s Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

r

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
R Tnitial
‘ Ke¥
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N

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application. '

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections fo monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented [ncident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R: §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Ceontractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’'s procedures must also address how the Contractor will: '

1. ldentify Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

[nitial
Contractor Initials E——
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- 4. |dentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.
DHHS Security Officer: .
. DPHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov:

lnhial.
Contractor Inifials L
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INE SOCIATE EEME

The Gontractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
(“Agreement”), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the “Business Associate.” The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department” shall be referred
to as the “Covered Entity,” The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as “the
parties.”

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XI!I,
Subtitle D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1)  Definitions

a.  Thefollowing terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Bréach," “Designated Record Set,” “Data Aggregation,” Designated Record
Set,” “Health Care Operations,” "HITECH Act,” “Individual,” “Privacy Rule,”
“Required by law,” “Security Rule,” and “Secretary.”

4

b.  Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity .
under the Agreement.

c.  “Constructively |dentifiable,” means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d.  “Protected Health Information” ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,

means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to

- the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. ‘"Part'2 record” means any patient “Record,” relating to a “Patient,” and “Patient
Identifying Information,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” méans protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclostire of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including b ]

Exhibit F . Kép
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

b.  Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:
|.  Forthe proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II.  Asrequired by law, according to the terms set forfh in paragraph ¢. and d. below;
ll.  According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. ' Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

¢.  Tothe extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d.  The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business’ Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy
Officer at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov  after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

c. Inthe event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d.  The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected privaey-1@e:

Exhibit F RE¥F
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

| The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification:;

Il. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

1. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed: and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
hasbeen mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach invéstigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate’s and the Covered Entity’'s compliance with HIPAA and the

- Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable. :

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same -
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PH! contained herein.

h.  Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
 Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement. '

i. Within ten (10} business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,

~ Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fuffill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k.  Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by anindividual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528,

. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations-to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect-to FHAT
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accordance with 45 CFR ‘Section 164.528.

m. Inthe event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate; the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have

¥ the responsibility of responding to forwardéd requests. However, if forwarding the
individuar's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n.  Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platform.

V1. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been

- otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state

or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections

of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such

PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as

' long as the Business Associate maintains such PHL. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,

the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been

destroyed. . )

(4)  Obligations of Covered Entity

a.  Covered. Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privécy Practices
on the Covered Entity’s website:

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaa/publications.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

.b., Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of. PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assomates
use or dlsclosure of PHI.

(5). [ermination of Agreement for Cause

a.  In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
“. may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timéframe
specified by Covered Entity.

{6) Miscellaneous

-a. ' Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory Refererices. All laws and regulations ((s&d™
Exhibit F - ke¥
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, th

herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time totime. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include 'this Business Associate
Agreement, to a_Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2,.mea_ns,the;8<acm§|_s_ig effector
as-amende. " T ~ -

wmm agree to take such action

as-is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity arid/or. Business Associate

—to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other

applicable federai and state law.

Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s} or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid termor condition: to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) 9. and
(3) n.I., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

Agreement. '
Department of Health and Human Services Qlarant Quality Solutions
The State ' Name of the Contractor

DoguSigned by:

aaaaaaaaaaaaa

{ Ttz Moy l Ko.MLl E. Forslue

Signature of A'uthorized Representative Signature of A'thhorized Representative

Melissa Hardy Ronald G. Forsythe

Name of Authorized Representative

Director,

Name of Authorized Representative

DLTSS CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

89/6/2024

Title of Authorized Representative

9/5/2024

Date

e parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate

Date Initial
Exhibit F ‘ Ke¥
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Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshite, do hereby certify that QLARANT QUALITY
SOLUTIONS, INC. is a Maryland Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 15,
2012. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 682070
Certificate Number: 0006693898

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,

Thereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 23rd day of May A.D, 2024,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF
AUTHORITY

I, Jeffrey D. Weiss __, hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. tam aduly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of  Qlarant Quality Solutions, nc.
{Corporation/L.LC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly
called and held on November 3, 2023, atwhich a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were
present and voting.

VOTED: That Ronald G. Forsythe, Jr,, PhD, Chief Executive Officer s duly authorized

! {Name and Title of Contract Signatory) )
on behaif of Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc, to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of
New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and
all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effact the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
" as of the.date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority
was valid'thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this
Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely
on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)iisted above currently occupy the position(s) indicated
-and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herain. .

. ’ imw«n@
Dated: _ 09/05/2024 (AT e

Signature ofiflected Officer
Name: Jeffrey D. Weiss
Titie: Chief Financial Officer

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

5/23/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND GONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROCGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

SSNIACT Darlene Hall

CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. PN Exy: 443-250-3263 {Ale, No:

44 Baltimore Street St o5, dahall@chiz.com

Cumberland, MD 21502 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A : Hartford Fire Insurance Company 19682

INSURED INSURER B : Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424
Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. INSURER ¢ : Trumbull Insurance Company 27120
Qfarant, Inc. INSURER b ; Syndicate 2623/623 at Lloyds
28464 Marlboro Avenue INSURER E : AIG Specialty Insurance Company 26883
Easton, MD 21601 INSURER F : Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13604

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: )

THIS 1S TC CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY FERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOGCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

o TYPE OF INSURANCE ﬁ%%"%ﬁl POLICY NUMBER (ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ;@) (ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@) LIMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X | X |30UUNBD3784 03/31/2024(03/31/2025 EACH GCCURRENGE $1,000,000
|CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR BRMARES éz'f:'é‘gfr%nce) $300,000
MED EXP [Any one person) | $10,000
N PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 1,000,000
EN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
| X! roLicy D ﬁggf D LOC PRODYUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | $2,000,000
OTHER: . $
C | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X | X |30UENBD3936 03/31/2024|03/31/2025 o aoadems - -MT 14,000,000
ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
: QWNED 1y SCHEOULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident] | $
(X MRowr [X|A5520E0 [N T
$
B [ X|UMBRELLAUAB | ¥ 1gccur X | X [30RHUBD3340 03/31/2024)03/31/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE : AGGREGATE $15,000,000
DED | X| ReTENTION$10,000 '3
C [WORKERS cOMPENSATION ol | X [sowBAW2IPO 03/31/2024|03/31/2026) X [ERrre | 90|
6§\Fflgggjm%%§%[ﬁgﬁlgﬁcme NIA E.L. EACH ACGIDENT $1,000,000
{Mandatory in NH) . E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| 1,000,000
gég%glegﬁgﬁlgggpsmnoms below E.L. DISEASE - PoLICY LimiT | 31,000,000
D |Sexual/Abuse & M. SML000000399608C 03/31/2024)03/31/2025 $1Mil/ $2Mil Aggregate
E |Professional & 028251852 03/31/202403/31/2025, $5MIL per claim and agg
F_|Cyber Security 1000634697241 03/3112024 03!31/2025’ $5MIL per claim and agg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

]

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANGE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CBIZ Insurance Serviees, e,

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016103) 1 of1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#54071854/M4039309

v

ORDL3




Docusign Envelope 1D: C5BB29F9-79AC-4FAB-9CSE-05C5FB48F 184

Qlarant::  Solutions i Markets

BestPecple. Sou Sefatoms Bt Rty ¥ :

Knowledge | About sewth  (mes  News  Cootadds  ClentPatl  moem
=

)
18 ]
2 n

o Home ] spoli [iler %

SI0

Qlarant i

Ly
0

- Qlarant;




Docusign Envelope ID: C5BB29F9-79AC-4FAB-9CIE-05C5EB48F1B4

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Financial Repaort
June 30, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report T

f

Board of Trustees
Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. (QQS), which comprise the
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of QQS as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of QQS and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, QQS adopted Accounting Standards Update 2016-02,
Leases (Topic 842), as of July 1, 2022. Our opinion is' not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about-QQS's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be
issued. '
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of QQS's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements. :

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about QQS’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

e

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 22,
2023 on our consideration of QQS’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and cther
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of QQS’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering QQS's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

N

RSy 1S LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
August 22, 2023
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,997,890 $ 9,864,750
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts (2023—8$25,000; 2022—$25,000) (Note 2) 1,643,048 3,159,827
Investments (Notes 4 and 9) 7,507,017 7,017,621
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 31,412 21424 -
Total current assets 21,179,367 20,063,622
Due from relatéd parties, net 159,317 1,145,716
Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 2,966 12,256
Deposits 11,008 11,008
Right-of-use assets, net (Note 8) 489,720 -
Total assets ' $  21,842378 § 21232602
Liabilities and Net Assets
_Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 177,308 3 480,269
Accrued salaries and related expenses 314,257 234,413
Accrued vacation 577,739 522,814
Deferred rent (Note 9) - 8,631
Provision for insurance claims {Note 7) 102,860 148,157
Reserve for contract loss 25,000 553,743
Contract liabilities 740,849 745,942
Current portion of lease liabilities {Note ) 90,431 -
Total current liabilities 2,028,444 2,693,969
Lease liabilities, noncurrent {Note 9) 402,753 -
Total liabilities 2,431,197 . 2,693,969
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Net assets: i
Without donor restrictions 19,411,181 18,538,633
Total net assets . 19,411,181 18,538,633
Total liabilities and net assets . $ 21842378 $ 21232602

See notes to financial statements.
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Statements of Activities
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Contract revenue $ 18,156,970 16,521,986
Expenses:

Program expenses 11,645,966 10,859,142

. General and administrative 4,368,387 4,032,987
Total expenses 16,014,353 14,892,129

Change in net assets before other income (expense) 2,142,617 1,629,857

Other income {expense):

Contribution to related party ({1,900,000) (728,118)
Investment income (loss), net (Note 4) 629,931 (746,058)
Total other income (expense), net (1,270,069) {1,474,178)

Change in net assets 872,548 155,681

Net assets without donor restrictions:

" Beginning 18,538,633 18,382,952
Ending $ 19.411,181 18,538,633

See notes to financial statements..
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Atejaudold pue [eguepyuod)

Year Ended June 30, 2023
Program
Quality
Improvement . .
and Public External Payment General and
Reporting Quality Review Accuracy Total Administrative Total
Labor $ 1,706,582 3 4,576,237 % 15,242 % 6,298,061 $ 2,037,292 % 8,335,353
Fringe benefits (Notes 6 and 7) 799,592 2,143,122 7,112 2,949,826 977,601 3,927,427
Consultants 1,015,117 1,127,929 - 2,143,046 353,902 2,496,948
Travel 21,941 270,314 - 292,255 14,606 306,861
Equipment maintenance - - - - 30,089 30,089
OCffice supplies 794 16,093 - 16,887 5,140 22,027
Reproduction 469 5,935 - 6,404 400 6,804
Occupancy (Note 8) 5,246 221,298 700 227,244 271,736 498,980
Recruitment 2,114 3,994 73 6,181 51,170 57,351°
Postage 6,233 30,763 - . 36,996 217 39,167
Telephone 22,056 65,662 - 87,718 28,359 116,077
Meeting costs 3,483 34,805 - 38,288 23,395 61,683
Subscriptions - 235 - 235 20,055 20,290
Advertising - - - - . 9,283 9,283
Licenses, fees and dues 55,699 15,869 - 71,568 418,344 489,912
Business insurance - - - . - 124,844 124,844
Reserve (recovery) for (of) contract loss {367,872) {160,871} - {528,743) - (528,743}
+
Total expenses $ 3271454 8§ 8,351,385 $ 23,127 $ 11,645966  § 4,368,387 $ 16,014,353

See notes to financial statements.
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2022

i Program
Quality
Improvement
and Public External Payment General and
Reporting  Quality Review Accuracy Total Administrative Total
: f

Labor . L 1,404,090 § 4201543 % 110,681 5716,314 § 1,847,769 § 7,564,083
Fringe benefits {(Notes 6 and 7) 682,651 2,084,740 54,236 2,821,627 767,413 3,689,040
Consultants 276,632 1,107,280 - 1,383,912 465,134 (' 1,849,046
Travel 3,368 88,786 - 92,154 5,226 ' 97,380
Equipment maintenance - - - - 11,279 ' 11,279
Office supplies 1,816 17,186 300 19,302 14,032 ;33,334
Reproduction 281 6,721 35 7,037 917 7.954
Cccupancy (Note 8) 81,010 304,005 8,778 393,793 342,046 735,839
Recruitment 1,878 3,601 84 5,663 440 6,103
Postage 2,510 22,454 248 25,212 3,007 { 28,219
Telephone 22,101 62,886 - 84,987 58,531 143,518
Meeting costs 240 28,046 - 28,286 8,305 34,591
Subscriptions - - - - 16,874 16,874
Advertising - - - - 6,060 { 6,060
Licenses, fees and dues 18,489 31,623 - 50,112 370,162 420,274
Business insurance - - - - 117,792 117,7?:2
Reserve for contract loss 41,000 186,000 3,743 230,743 - 230,743

Total expenses $ 2536,166 § 8144871 % 178,105 10,859,142 & 4,032,987 14,892,129

See notes to financial statements,
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flow
Years Ended June 20, 2023 and 2022

. 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets $ 872,548 ' $ . 155,681
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 9,290 12,441
Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts - (760,931)
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments {261,130) 1,007,455
(Decréase) increase in reserve for contract loss {528,743) 230,743
Amortization of right-of-use assets 80,824 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable 1,516,779 161,495
Prepaid expenses and other current assets {9,988) 3,008
Due from related parties 986,399 2,132,119
Deposits - 16,065
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {302,961) 200,693
Accrued salaries and related expenses 79,844 (282,803)
Accrued vacation 54,925 (78,556)
Deferred rent - (7,384)
- Provision for insurance claims {45,297) - 60,123
Deferred revenue . (5,093) (453,891)
Lease liabilities {85,991) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,361,406 2,396,256

Cash flows from investing activities:

" Purchases of property and equipment - (9,428)
Purchases of investments (245,125) (2,844,943}
Proceeads from sale of investments 16,859 2,600,232

Net cash used in investing activities {228,266) (254,139)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,133,140 2,142,117

Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year 9,864,750 7,722,633
End of year ‘ \ $  11,997890 % 9,864,750
(Continued)
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Qlarant Quality Solutions,Inc.

Statements. of Cash Flow
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:
ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:
Operating leases . $ 605,281 3
Lease liability:
Operating leases $ 616,932 %
Deferred rent liahility prior year $ 8631 §

See notes to financial statements.
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Qlarant Quality Sclutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of activities: Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc. (QQS) was formed as a Maryland Corporation and
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) in April 1973. QQS is a private, nonprofit organization with
the mission to create solutions that transform health and improve the quality of healthcare. QQS i5 a
subsidiary of Qlarant, [nc. (Qlarant).

QQS works with healthcare providers across the continuum of care to create sustainable and
cost-effective programs, improved care delivery processes and learning opportunities that improve patient
outcomes.

A summary of QQS’s significant accounting policies follows:

Basis of presentation: The financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in its Accounting Standards Codification {the Codification
or ASC). As required by the Not-for-Profit Entities topic of the Cedification, Financial Staterments of
Not-for-Profit Organizations, QQS is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with
donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are the net assets that are
neither invested in perpetuity nor purpese or time restricted by doner-imposed stipulations.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions are contributions whose use is
limited by donor-imposed stipulations in perpetuity or that either expire by passage of time or can be
fulfilled and removed by actions of QQS pursuant to these stipulations. Net assets may be restricted for
various purposes, such as use in future periods or use for specified purposes. There were no net assets
with donor restrictions at June 30, 2023 and 2022,

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less and designated to fund operations.

Credit risk: QQS has deposits in a financial institution in excess of federally insured amounts, QQS has
not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not exposed to any
S|gn|f|cant credit risk on cash.

Substantlally all of QQS’s accounts receivable and revenue are derived from prime contracts and
subcontracts with U.S. federal and state agencies or commercial prime contractors thereof, All contract
receivables are on an unsecured basis. -

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at their original invoice amount less an estimate
made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. QQS's
ability to collect outstanding receivables from clients is critical to operating performance and cash flows.
Typically, QQS8's client agreements require monthly payments to mitigate such risk. Management
determines the allowance for uncollectible accounts by regularly evaluating accounts receivable and
considering the client’s financial condition, credit history and current economic conditions. Accounts
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously
written off are recorded when received. Receivable balances are considered past due if any portion of the
balance is outstanding for more than 90 days. Interest is not recorded on any past due receivables.

9
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Unbilled receivables relate to contracts in which the work has been performed or changes in.indirect rates
though invoicing has not occurred. Generally, unbilled receivables relating to services performed will be
billed within 12 months, while unbilled receivables relating to changes in indirect rates can, in some
instances, only be billed as part of the contract close out phase.

Investments: Investment securities are carried at fair value. The change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation of marketable securities for the year is reflected in investment income, net in the statements
of activities. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on a specific identification
basis and are recorded on the settlement date of the transaction in investment.income, net in the
statements of activities. Cash, exchange-traded funds and money market funds included in investments
are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

QQS invests in a professionally managed portfolio that contains cash, exchange-traded funds and money
market funds. Such investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit.
Due to the level of risk associated with such investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes
in the value of such investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near-term
would materially affect investment balances and the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Property and equipment: QQS’s property and equipment is recorded at cost. QQS capitalizes all
property and equipment purchases of $2,500 or more, and these assets are carried at cost. Depreciation
is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets as

follows:

Asset Description . : Life (Years)
Leasehold improvements *
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5-10
Computer hardware 2-5
Computer software 2-5

*

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life.

Valuation of long-lived assets: QQS accounts for the valuation of long-lived assets under FASB

ASC 360-10-15, Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This guidance requires that long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangible assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, Recoverability of
long-lived assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset.to future undiscounted
net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considéred to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds the estimated fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the
carrying amount or fair value, less costs to sell. Management determined that no impairment of long-lived
assets existed at June 30, 2023 and 2022. '

Deferred rent: Through the year ended June 30, 2022, rent expense on operating leases is charged to
operations on a straight-line basis cver the term of the related leases. The difference between rent
expense recognized and rental payments, as stipulated in the lease agreement, was reflected as deferred
rent in the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022. In connection with the adoption of ASC
842, deferred rent was reclassified as a reduction of the right-of-use (ROU) assets related to operating
leases during the year ended June 30, 2023,

10
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Qlarant Quality Sclutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Revenue and cost recognition: QQS recognizes revenue using a five-step process that includes:

(1) identifying the contract with a customer, (2) identifying the performance obligations in the contract,

{3) determining the transaction price, (4) allocating the transaction price to the performance abligations
and (5) recognizing revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied. All revenue reported in
the statements of activities represents revenue from contracts with customers.

Contracts are accounted for when QQS has approval and commitment from both parties, the rights of the
parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the contract has commercial substance and
collectability of consideration is probable.

Contract modifications are evaluated to determine whether they should be accounted for as part of the
original contract or as a'separate contract. QQS determines whether modification either creates new
rights or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Contract modifications are accounted for
as a separate contract if the modification adds distinct goods and services and increases the contract
value by the standalone selling price of those goods or services. Modifications that are not determined to
be a separate contract are accounted for as either a prospective adjustment to the original contract if the
goods or services in the modification are distinct from those transfetred before the maodification, or as a
cumulative adjustment if the goods and services are not distinct and are part of a'single performance
obligation that is partially satisfied. QQS’s contracts frequently provide customers an option to renew for
an additional period of time under the same terms and conditions as the original contract. The renewal
options typically do not provide the customer any matetial rights under the contract and therefore, are
treated as separate contracts when they include distinct services at standalone selling prices.

Transaction prices.for contracts with the U.S. government are typically determined through a competitive
procurement process and are based on estimated or actual costs providing the services in accordance
with applicable regulations. When determining the total transaction price, QQS identifies both fixed and
variable consideration elements in the contract. Variable consideration includes any amount within the
transaction price that is not fixed. These variable amounts are generally awarded at the completion of a
prescribed measurement period based on the achievement of performance metrics. QQS estimates
variable consideration as the most likely amount to which QQS expects to be entitled limited to the extent
that it is probable that a significant reversal of the cumulative amount recognized to date will not be
required in a subsequent period. Factors used in estimating the transaction price for variable fees include:
previous experience with the customer/type of work, probability of meeting the fee criteria as defined by
the contract, previously awarded fees on the contract and susceptibility to factors outside of the entity’s
influence.

Cost reimbursable portions of contract revenue are recognized over time as costs are incurred during the
contract period.

QQsS received conditional grants that have not yet been recognized as of the end of the year. As of

June 30, 2023, conditional grants payments of $3,143,317 were not yet received. As such, these amounts
are not reported in the accompanying statements of activities. Conditional grants are recognized as
revenue when the specified conditions of the grant are substantially met.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts has various performance obligations, such as deliverables and/or
services, that must be performed over the contract period. Fixed-fee portions of contract revenue with one
performance obligation are recognized over time as the various performance obligations are satisfied,
which is typically ratably over the service period. Fixed-fee portions of contract revenue with multiple
performance obligations are recognized at a point in-time, as performance obligations are satisfied.

11
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

QQS provides currently for all known or anticipated losses on contracts. QQS invoices the federal
government in conformity with government contract schedules.

Functional allocation of expenses: The costs of providing various program and supporting activities
have been presented on a detailed basis in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Certain expenses are
attributable to more than one program. Direct costs associated with specific programs are recorded as
program expenses. Indirect expenses and fringe benefits are allocated to specific programs based on
modified total direct costs and total labor dollars, respectively.

Income taxes: QQS is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. Income,
which is not related to exempt purposes, less applicable deductions, is subject to federal and state
corporate income taxes. QQS had no material unrelated business income for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022.

QQS follows the accounting standard on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, which addresses the
determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be
recorded in the financial statements. Under this guidance, QQS may recognize the tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position would. be sustained on
examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits
recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of heing realized upon ultimate settlement.

The guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also addresses de-recognition classification,
interest, penalties on income taxes and accounting in interim periods. Management has evaluated QQS's
tax positions and has concluded that QQS has taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to
the financial statements to comply with provisions of this guidance.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and notes, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Indirect expenses: Indirect costs are billed to U.S. government and state agencéy contracts based on a
provisional billing rate negotiated with the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) who oversee
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Payments to QQS from HHS are provisional and
subject to adjustment upon audit. QQS has been audited by HHS through 2020, with the exception of
2018. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, QQS's indirect cost rates were calculated based
onh modified {otal direct cost.

Allocation of expenses/due from related parties: QQS incurs expenses associated with Qlarant and
Qlarant Integrity Solutions, LLGC (QIS), which are related entities. These expenses are allocated based
upon allocation methodologies approved by the Defense Contractor Audit Agency {DCAA), The balance
of these expenses which have not been repaid by related parties are included in due from related parties
in the statements of financial position. Due from related parties, net was $159,317 and $1,145,716 at
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

QQS made contributions to related parties totaling $1,200,000 and $728,118 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

12
Confidential and Proprietary



Docusign Envelope ID: C5BB29F9-79AC-4FA8-9COE-05C5FB48F1B4

Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases: In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842, Leases, to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations related to their leasing arrangements. The update requires lessees to recognize most
leases on their statements of financial position as a right-of-use (ROU) asset representing the right to use
an underlying asset and a lease liability representing the obligation to make lease payments over the
lease term, measured on a discounted basis. Topic 842 also requires additional disclosure of key
quantitative and qualitative information for leasing arrangements. Similar to the previous lease guidance,
the update retains a distinction between finance leases (similar to capital leases in Topic 840, Leases)
and operating leases, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of
activities. QQS adopted Topic 842 on July 1, 2022, using the optional transition method to the modified
retrospective approach, which eliminates the requirement to restate the prior-period financial statements.
Under this transition provision, QQS has applied Topic 842 to reporting periods beginning on July 1,
2022, while pricr periods continue to be reported and disclosed in accordance with QQS’s historical
accounting treatment under ASC Topic 840, Leases.

QQS determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the date on which the
terms of the contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable rights and obligations. A
contract is or contains a lease when: (i) explicitly or implicitly identified assets have been deployed in the
contract and (if) QQS obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of that underlying
asset and directs how and for what purpose the asset is used during the term of the contract. QQS also
considers whether its service arrangsments include the right to control the use of an asset.

QQS elected the package of practical expedients under the transition guidance within Topic 842, in which
QQS does not reassess: (1) the historical lease classification, (2) whether any existing contracts at .
transition are or contain leases, or (3) the initial direct costs for any existing leases. QQS has not elected
to adopt the hindsight practical expedient and, therefore, will measure the ROU asset and lease liability
using the remaining portion of the lease term upon adoption of ASC 842 on July 1, 2022,

QQS made an accounting policy election available under Topic 842 not to recognize ROU assets and
lease liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less. For all other leases, ROU assets and lease
liabilties are measured based on the present value of future lease payments over the lease term at the
commencement date of the lease (or July 1, 2022, for existing leases upon the adoption of Topic 842).
The ROU assets also include any initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date and are reduced by any lease incentives. To determine the present value of lease
payments, QQS made an accounting policy election available to non-public companies to utilize a
risk-free borrowing rate, which is aligned with the lease term at the lease commencement date (or
remaining term for leases existing upon the adoption of Topic 842).

Future lease payments may include fixed rent escalation clauses or payments that depend on an index
(such as the consumer price index), which is initially measured using the index or rate at lease
commencement. Subsequent changes of an index and other periodic market-rate adjustments to base
rent are recorded in variable lease expense in the period incurred. Residual value guarantees or
payments for terminating the lease are included in the lease payments only when it is probable théy will
be incurred.

QQS has made an accounting policy election to account for lease and non-lease components in its
contracts as a single lease component for its real estate, vehicle and equipment asset classes. The
non-lease components typically represent additional services transferred to QQS, such as common area
maintenance for real estate, which are variable in nature and recorded in variable lease expense in the
period incurred.
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. Qlarant Guality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Adoption of Topic 842 resulted in the recording of additional ROU assets and lease liabilities related to
QQS’s operating leases of $95,083 and $103,694, respectively, on July 1, 2022. The adoption of the new
lease standard did not materially impact the change in net assets or cash flows and did not result in a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of net assets.

Subsequent events: QQS has evaluated subsequent events through August 22, 2023, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2, Liguidity and Availability

QQS s primarily supported by contracted service fees, As part of QQS's liquidity management, it has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other
cbligations come due. Further, QQS has a line of credit, as described in Note 6, available to meet any
obligations due which would not be covered by available financial assets.

Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the date of the statements of financial position, are comprised of the following at
June 30, 2023 and 2022: .

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11997890 $ 9,864,750
Accounts receivable, net 1,643,048 3,159,827
Investments ) 7,507,017 7,017,621
Financial assets available to meet cash needs
for general expenditures within one year $ 21147955 3 20,042.198

Note 3. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022;

2023 2022
Billed contract receivables % 1,668,048 $ 2,805,127
Unbilled contract receivables - - 379,700

1,668,048 3,184,827
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (25,000) {25,000)

$ 1643048 § 3.159.827
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Qfarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Finéncial Statements

Note 4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, net, consists of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Leasehold improvements 3 18,295 % 18,295
Furniture and fixtures ' 12,100 12,100
Office equipment 36,557 36,557
Computer hardware 1,043 1,043
. 67,995 67,995

Less accumulated depreciation {65,029) (55,739)
$ 2966 % 12,256

Depreciation expense was $9,290 and $12,441 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Note 5. Investments
Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Description Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Cash and money market funds 3 145547 $ 145547 § 146,253 $ 146,253
Mutual funds 7,116,585 6,709,893 6,932,781 6,281,462
Exchange traded funds 712,238 651,577 690,883 589,906

) $ 7974370 ¢ 7507017 § 7769917 $ 7017621

Investment income (loss), net, consists of the following for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Interest and dividends, net of fees $ 368,801 3% 261,397
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments 261,130 {1,007,455)

$ 629931 % {746,058)

Note 6. Revolving Note Agreement

Qlarant, along with its subsidiaries QQS, QAS, QF and QIS, has a revolving note agreement with a
financial institution, which is collateralized by QQS's accounts receivable and certain receivables of its
affiliates. Under the agreement, Qlarant may borrow up to $7,500,000 at the one-month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.75%, with & minimum adjusted LIBOR rate of 2% effective as of

December 2020 (3.54% at June 30, 2022). On June 30, 2023, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate
(SOFR) replaced LIBOR. The effective interest rate at June 30, 2023 under SOFR was 6.94%. As of
June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were no cutstanding borrowings on the revolving note agreement. The
revolving note agreement expires in October 2023,
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7. Employee Benefit Plans

QQS participates in a defined contribution pension plan, the Qlarant Money Purchase Pension Plan,
covering substantially all of its employees. QQS contributes 10% of each covered employee's eligible
compensation, including eligible bonuses and excluding compensation paid for vacation time earned but
not taken as vacation. Participants are prohibited from making contributions. Employees hired on or after
July 1, 2003, are eligible after one full calendar year of service and vest at a rate of 25% annually over the
four years foliowing entry into the pension plan. Employer contributions were $539,472 and $487,553 for
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

QQS employees also participate in the Qiarant 403(b) plan, where eligible employees may contribute up
to 100% of eligible compensation up to the federal limit.

Note 8. Medical Benefit Self-Insurance Program

QQS is self-insured for employee health insurance claims. The Plan has an annual stop-loss coverage of
$75,000 per claim. Plan expenses include claims incurred, as well as management’s estimates of claims
incurred but not reported. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the portion of the accrual for claims incurred but
not yet reported allocated to QQS by Qlarant based on covered employees was $102,860 and $148,157,
respectively, and the related expense was $842,989 and $889,887, respectively, which is recorded as a
component of fringe benefits in the statements of activities.

Note 9. Leases

QQS has entered into various noncancelable leases for property and equipment for its program services

and for its office.spaces expiring at various dates through July 2028. Several of the leases contain options

to renew for varying periods. In addition, certain leases contain termination options where the rights to A
terminate are held by either QQS, the lessor or both parties. These options to extend or terminate a lease
are included in the lease terms when it is reasonably certain that QQS will exercise that option. QQS's
operating leases generally do not contain any material restrictive covenants or residual value guarantees.
Rent expense was $87,660 and $99,898 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Operating lease ROU assets and lease liabilities as of June 30, 2023, consisted of the following:

Assets:

Operating lease assets : 3 489,720
Liabilities:

Operating lease liabilities - 5 493,184

The components of lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

-~

Operating lease cost $ ' 80.824 -
Short-term lease cost -
Total lease cost 3 80,824
16
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Leases (Continued)
The lease term and discount rate for operating leases are as follows at June 30, 2023;

Weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases 5.02 years
Weighted-average discount rate for operating leases 3.47%

Future undiscounted cash flows and reconciliation to the operating lease liabilities recognized on the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, is as follows:

Years ending June 30:

2024 5 101,659
2025 104,808
2026 107,973
2027 111,189
2028 114,480
Thereafter . ' : 2,700
Total minimum obligations ’ 542,809
Less imputed interest ' {49,625)
Present value of lease liabilities 5 493,184

Future minimum lease commitments as determined under Topic 840 for noncancellable leases are the
same as those noted above.

Nofe 10. Fair Value Measurements

QQS has adopted guidance issued by the FASB which defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween market participants
at the measurement date and sets out a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority
to unchservable inputs (Level 3). Inputs are broadly defined as assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liabilty. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. The types of investments included in
Level 1 include listed mutual funds.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
' directly or indirectly; and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation
methodologies. Investments which are generally included in this category include certificates of
deposit, corporate loans, less liquid, restricted’ equity securities and certain corporate bonds
and over-the-counter derivatives. A significant adjustment to a Level 2 input could result in the
Level 2 measurement becoming a Level 3 measurement.
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10.

Fair Value Measurements {Continued)

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability and include situations where there is little, if
any, market activity for the asset or liability. The inputs into the determination of fair value are
based upon the best information in the circumstances and may require significant management
judgment or estimation. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases an investment's level within the fair

value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value

measurement. QQS’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the investment.

The foliowing section describes the valuation techniques used by QQS:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the reporting entity has the
ability to access at the measurement date,

Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs corroborated by market data at the

measurement date.

Level 3: QQS has no Level 3 financial instruments as of June 30, 2023 or 2022.

The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis by level

within the hierarchy as of June 30, 2023:

Mutual funds:
Intermediate bond funds
TIP bond funds
International bond funds
Large cap equity funds
Real estate funds
Small cap equity funds
International equity funds
Energy/natural resources funds
Foreign small-mid growth funds
Short term bond funds

Exchange traded funds :

Total investments at fair value

Cash, held at cost
Total investments

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$1,277,345  $1,277,345 - -
498,933 498,933 - -
185,720 185,720 - -
1,364,057 1,364,057 - -
408,685 408,685 - -
459,597 458,587 - -
901,571 901,571 - -
452,264 452 264 - -
118,872 118,872 - -
1,042,849 1,042,849 - -
651,577 651,577 - -
7,361,470 - $7,361,470 - -
145,547
§7.507,017
18
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Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10.

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis by level

within the hierarchy as of June 30, 2022;

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level| 3
Mutual funds:

Intermediate bond funds $1,044,509 $1,044509 $ - $ -
TIRP bond funds 507,989 507,989 . - -
International bond funds 191,534 191,534 - -
Large cap equity funds 1,244,998 1,244,998 - -
Real estate funds 427,475 427 475 - -
Small cap equity funds 610,640 610,640 - -
International equity funds 771,974 771,974 - -
Energy/natural resources funds 441,150 441,150 - -
Short term bond funds 1,041,193 1,041,193 - -
Exchange traded funds 589,906 589,906. - -
Total investments at fair value 6,871,368 $6871388 $ - $ -

Cash, held at cost 146,253

Total investments $7,017,621

Note 11.

Litigation: QQS has certain pending legal proceedings that are, in the opinion of management, ordinary
routine matters incidental to the normal business conducted by QQS. In the opinion of management, such
proceedings are substantially covered by insurance, and the ultimate disposition of such proceedings is
not expected to have a material adverse effect on QQS’s financial position, activities or cash flows.

Commitments and Contingencies

Federal contracts: QQS receives funds under federal contracts that are subject to annual audits and
periodic reviews by grantor agencies. As such, there exists a contingent [iability for potential questioned
costs that may result from such audits and reviews. Amounts due to grantor agencies from such audits
and reviews cannot be determined at this time and are not expected to have a material effect on the
financial position of QQS.

Paycheck Protection Program promissory note: On April 23, 2020, QQS applied for and received a
loan of $901,800 pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP) under Division A, Title | of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), which was enacted on March 27, 2020.
Proceeds were used to pay compensation and benefit costs in order to retain workers and to make
mortgage interest payments, lease payments and utility payments. QQ$ applied for and received
forgiveness of the entire loan amount and related accrued interest on June 14, 2021. The loan
forgiveness is subject to audit by the Small Business Administration for.a period of six years after
forgiveness,
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2024 Qlarant Quality Board of Trustees

{as of 07/26/2024)

Name Office ‘ Director Since Current Term
S. Allan Adelman, Esq. 2022 2022-2024
Harbhajan "Harry" Ajrawat, MD © 2020 2023-2025
Jonathan D. Boyer : 2024 2024-2026
Chante' L. Brady Secretary/Treasurer 2024 2024-2026
Christopher E. Broomfield 2024 2024-2026
Herbert M. Chain 2021 2024-2026
Mark T. Edney, MD 2023 2024-2026
Brian G. Grissler, FACHE 2019 2022-2024
Elizabeth M. "Betty" Hewlett 2023 2024-2026
Anthony P. "Tony" Kern, Vice Chair 2019 2022-2024
Regina Knox Woods, Chair 2016 2024-2026
John H. Murray, Esq. 2013 2022-2024
Amanda Neal 2016 2023-2025
Midgett S. Parker, Jr., Esq. ' 2021 2024-2026

Arnold Williams 2024 2024-2026



Docusign Envelope 1D; C5BB29F9-79AC-4FAS-9COE-05C5FB48F1B4

Qlarant::

Menorca Collazo
Project Role: Director of Training and Communication

Education

North Shore Community College; Criminal Justice/Law Enforcement Administration,
Criminalistics-and Criminal Science; 1998 - 1999

Salem State University; Bachelor’s in Sociology and Minor in Criminal Justice, Criminology; 2001
-2002

Salem State University; Master's in Education, Sociology; Criminal Justice; 2005-2006

éxperience

Qlarant, Inc.; Georgia Jan 2009 - Present

Regional Manager and Training Manager

Oversee quality improvement reviews for Medicaid Waiver programs for the State of Georgia

{Now and Comp).

* Manage 100% of the training and technical assistance department with creativity and
enthusiasm.

* Interview, hire, and train employees; plan, assign, and direct work; appraise
performance; promote leadership.

e Track and measure our adherence to the Center for Medicaid Services (CMS)
performance standards and work with teams to create mitigation and action plans as
necessary.

» Gather data and derive insights through rigorous analysis for process improvement.

s Develop, implement and coordinate training and auditing required to ensure we
are operationalizing best practices.

* Spearhead effective engagement with process improvement, root cause analysis, and
systems teams to align with requirements, work product, and priorities.

* Drive change management efforts for new metrics to include business
process definition, communication, training plan, and end-user training.

¢ Resolve customer service concerns for English and Spanish-speaking clients.

o Strategically compliment data to lead change within and outside the organization.
Assemble coalitions and councils with state agencies, community agencies, nonprofit
and private sector organizations to achieve common goals.

* Reconcile budgets, manage risk, and develop an intervention to mitigate risk.

s Champion the Learning and Development team.

' Develop curricula and educational modules, for nationwide presentations and
educational series, create customized educational programs, training courses and
materials online courses, webinars, and live presentations.

e Train nationally on Person-Centered Thinking.

» Surpass project goals for over 10 years with 100% accuracy and quality.

Avita Community Partners, Georgia January 2007 - February 2009
Director of Services
e Epitomized the Board and agency by reporting to local, State, and Federal
governments and other organizations on all aspects of program operations.
¢ Prepared an annual operating budget and performance contract for mental

Resumes 1
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Qlarant: - R umes

’
* health, intellectual disabilities and substance abuse services based on
projected need and revises the budget and performance contract based on
available resources.

* Monitored program revenue, expenditures, and negotiated time limited contracts
with appropriate service providers of mental health, intellectual disabilities and
substance abuse services as well as contracts for agency operations.

» Ensured that agency operations were conducted in a cost effective manner,
oversaw personnel operations, and conducted written performance evaluations.

¢ Optimized ongoing programmatic needs assessments to determine mental
health, intellectual disabilities and substance abuse service needs and
recommended program priorities to the Board.

o Collaboratively requisite policies and procedures related to the agency's
programs in accordance with state and federal regulations.

e Directed monitoring and evaluation activities to ensure that programs were in
compliance with appropriate cperational standards including licensing and
evaluation standards of the Department of Behavioral Health and
Developmental Services as well as with other applicable regulatory and funding
agencies.

e Directed day to day operations related to public.administration as it relates to
program, personnel and fiscal management, public and private mental health,
developmental, and substance abuse service systems, national health practices
including consclidation and integration of physical and behavioral health,
management information systems, program planning, monitoring, program
evaluation, managed care programming and implementation.

o Handled public relations responsibilities, provided programmatic supervision of
the Now, Comp waivers, Family Support and grants, and aid programs for
individuals with intellectual disabilities, and dual diagnosed individuals with
behavioral health diagnoses.

. » Created and maintained a high performance environment characterized by
positive leadership with a strong team orientation. ]

o AsDeputy Director of Area Services/Developmental Disabilities (promoted within ayear);

® Prepared annual budget in accordance with agency guidelines and .
monitored expenditure for compliance.

¢ Implemented new day and community programs/procedures to increase the quality of
services.

* Responsible for the administration and functionality of community and residential services.

* Collaborated with staff on the progress towards defining, meeting and attaining agency
goals.

¢ Managed inter-agency agreements and ensured adequate service delivery and
developed staff compliance trainings and.company educational programs for
staff.

¢ Created incentives and teambuilding concepts to promote
independence and leadership amongst staff and improve productivity
goals.
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RFP-2024-DLTSS-06-HCBSP
Resumes

Commonwealth of Massachusetts; Massachusetts Sept, 1999 — Jan 2007

Department of Developmental Services

Department Manager, Manager of Human Coordination Bilingual

* Directed State Service Coordinators and Social Workers to carry out State
department objectives utilizing knowledge of rules, regulations, procedures, and
practices.

¢ Managed all family support for thée service area. 4

e Oversaw budget for area office, consisting of 1.3 million dollars in area aliocations
utilizing Person- Centered Concepts. - :

* Supervised Multicultural and Bilingual services, Deaf Services, and Children.

* Conducted state and regional {over 500 employees) diversity training as part

' of the Governor's Diversity initiative,

¢ Handled performance reviews utilizing State review system, based on state
regulations and policies and procedures.

s Collaborated with vocational rehabilitation programs on departmental and state goals.

s Managed residential and education services for children and adolescents with
emotional behaviors and,cognitive disabilities, as well as, court-involved adults
and juveniles at risk/on prahation.

e Collaborated with the Department of Education at all levels and judicial courts.

s Wrote, reviewed and approved Behavior Support Plans

s Managed Family Support budget for IDD and Autism programs.

Licenses and Certifications )
Certified Professional Project Manager (CPPM) - Management & Strategy [nstitute
Lean Six Sigma Green Belt Certification - Management & Strategy Institute

Person Centered Thinking Mentor Trainer

Charting the LifeCourse Coach

Skills

Leadership ¢ Staff development  Team building and Coaching * Project Management ¢
Auditing and Monitoring » Business development * Contract management ¢ Performance
Management ¢ Curriculum development o Technical Collaboration e Technical Assistance »
Facilitation e Strategic Planning
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Qlarant: -

fesd Frogie, Gert Sokitions. Brst Resme®

RFP-2024-DLTSS-06-HCBSP
Home and Community Based Services

New Hampshire HCBS Qlarant Quality Solutions, Inc.

Key Personnel

Person-Centered Planning Training

Amount Funded

Confidential and Proprietary

Salary for % of Salary
Name Job Title Budee t){’erio d Funded by by Program
' g Program Budget Period
Menorca Collazo, . . o 403303
M.Ed., LSSGBC Project Director $93,475 14% $13,30




